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Financial
Highlights

• Pretax income excluding interest and the effect of the charges for purchased research and development associated 
with acquisitions. 

• Based on average stock price and shares outstanding for each fiscal year.

Average Market Capitalization (In Billions)

Operating Income (In Millions)

Revenue (In Millions)
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Chairman’s 
Letter

Dear Stockholder,

Creativity, vision, and hard work. Together,

these made fiscal 1998 a year of superlatives

for CA. This year’s Annual Report clearly

reflects those qualities—qualities that 

resulted in the introduction of highly

acclaimed technology, an effective global

marketing strategy, and the outstanding 

financial performance that we are proud to

report for this year.

Charles B. Wang
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irst, the financials. Our success in anticipating the

needs of our global corporate clientele enabled

us to realize a 17% increase in annual revenue to

more than $4.7 billion. Over $1.9 billion (or 41%)

of this was client/server revenue — an increase of 44% — demonstrating

our effectiveness in transitioning in a rapidly changing marketplace.

Excluding special charges, net income rose 23% to $1.2 billion, with earn-

ings per share of $2.10, up 24% from last year.

The financial markets recognized and rewarded CA’s ability to 

consistently execute our technology and marketing strategies, and to 

outperform even our own ambitious goals. In the last year, CA’s stock 

price rose 123%, more than doubling our market capitalization from 

$14.1 billion to $31.5 billion.

From a market perspective, we expanded our global distribution 

network in terms of both geographic reach and segment penetration.

In November, we began construction of our new state-of-the-art 

European headquarters in the United Kingdom. The new facility will be a

center for support, marketing, and training across Europe. Incorporating 

an on-site day care and fitness center, the new facility will reflect CA’s 

corporate philosophy of integrating work and family life — creating a climate

that encourages employees to excel.

To give small and midsized clients greater access to CA’s technol-

ogies, we introduced our new Workgroup Edition and Enterprise Edition,

function-specific products. These focused, rapidly deployable enterprise and

information management solutions offer best-of-class functionality at a price

point that will appeal to high-growth market segments.

We also formed a new global channel organization to help worldwide

business partners and distributors capitalize on new business opportunities

being created by CA solutions. For CA to realize maximum revenue from 

our technology investments, it is crucial for us to develop robust channels

for bringing that technology to the broadest possible range of clients.

Our goal is to have 50% of our sales come through the channel by the 

year 2000.

Speaking of the year 2000, we are pleased to report that CA quickly

assumed a leadership position in the Y2K market, providing substantial 

revenue opportunities for software and services into the next millennium.

To expand our service offerings, we created an independent division —

CA’s Global Professional Services (GPS ) — to provide a broad spectrum of

IT services, including consulting, implementation, outsourcing, and facilities

management. We believe GPS will redefine the services business by 

leveraging the highly automated CA software solutions that have proven to

be so efficient in thousands of organizations around the world.

hese software solutions continue to be the

heart of CA, as well as a considerable source of

pride for CA’s people. Unicenter TNG has

become one of the industry’s great success

stories, receiving tremendous critical acclaim

and market acceptance. In fact, we recently

shipped Unicenter TNG to our 10,000th client.

Our Jasmine object-oriented database set a

new standard for multimedia and Internet applications. And our Harmony

strategy presented the industry with the most credible and comprehensive

vision yet for unifying today’s fragmented IT landscape.

The vision that supports CA’s success is that technology is not some-

thing our clients’ deploy for its own sake. Instead, we believe that technology

can also support business functions and enable businesses to compete

more effectively. By maintaining an unswerving focus on this truth — and by

consistently helping clients align technology with their business — we have

established ourselves as an ideal business partner for the Information Age.

Of course, all this can only happen because of the exceptional nature

of CA’s people — who now number over 11,000 worldwide. We give our

employees the opportunity to grow, and provide them with the most 

progressive benefits package in the industry. To foster our vision of work and

community as an integrated whole, CA matches its employees’ charitable

contributions on a two-for-one basis.

Our people are committed to CA, and CA is committed to our people.

The following pages present more detail on what CA people have accom-

plished this year and what we plan to accomplish in the future. I thank you

for your participation in this tremendous undertaking, and look forward to

presenting you with another successful report in 1999.

Very truly yours,

.

F T
“CA’s stock price rose 123%,
more than doubling our market 
capitalization from $14.1 billion 
to $31.5 billion.”

Charles B. Wang

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Computer Associates International, Inc.



CA InTheNews
Laying A New Foundation:Unicenter TNG®

Framework™ Is Everywhere.

CA Unleashes
Unicenter TND.

In a move that further underscored its leadership
role, Computer Associates blanketed the industry
with a new foundation: Unicenter TNG Framework.
The Framework provides the foundation for 
managing complex, comprehensive computer 
networks.

Since July 1997,
hardware and software
providers have shipped
more than 3.6 million
copies. From this founda-
tion, customers can license
Unicenter TNG and the addi-
tional solutions they need. The
launch has succeeded. Today,
Unicenter TNG Framework has
become the most prevalent enter-
prise management framework. And
the corresponding Unicentered

branding program has become the most success-
ful program in the history of enterprise manage-
ment software.

Computer Associates revolutionized the IT industry
with the announcement of Unicenter® TND™ (The
Next Dimension)™. For the first time, Unicenter
TND incorporates time-based management along
with artificial intelligence that allows companies’ IT
systems to actually learn. In addition, an advanced
interface lets users look into the future to solve IT
problems before they happen.

Said Computer Associates’ Chairman and CEO
Charles B. Wang, “New technology has never
made such a compelling business case for IT.”

This year, Computer Associates announced
Harmony, a strategy to help companies leverage
their existing investments in information systems
with new innovations such as multimedia and the
Internet. With these new applications, companies
can speed their time-to-market and drive business
growth, while concurrently future-proofing their
systems to take advantage of the advances that
the future will hold.

Harmony solutions — Jasmine, Ingres II, and
Opal — address all of today’s organizations’ 
fundamental demands.

In a bold strategic move, Computer Associates
launched two new product families: Enterprise
Edition and Workgroup Edition, which comprise
the IT line of function-specific products from CA.

Available from CA’s direct and indirect chan-
nels, Enterprise Edition offers state-of-the-art
management software for specific areas, such as
Networks, Security, Software Distribution, Help
Desk, Asset Management, Storage, and Electronic
Commerce. All are based on CA’s industry-leading
Unicenter TNG technology.

Workgroup Edition offers best-in-class solutions
for workgroups through resellers and integrators.

These products offer the full benefit
of CA’s database and manage-

ment technology at a price point
and level of functionality to

meet customers’ exact work-
group needs.

CA’s commitment to Operation Smile reached a
new level with the creation of The Smile Train.
This nonprofit joint venture between China and
the U.S. will help more than 100,000 disfigured
children smile for the first time in their lives.

Carrying volunteer
teams of American 
surgeons and nurses,
The Smile Train will
travel through China,
operating on children
and teaching local
Chinese surgeons to 
repair cleft palates and
lips. Using CA technol-
ogy, Chinese surgeons will perform hundreds 
of computer-simulated surgeries before they 
perform their first procedure on a child.

More than 30 technology industry leaders have
joined the CA-founded MERIT (Maximizing
Efficiency of Resources in IT) consortium. In addi-
tion to pursuing means to lower Total Cost of
Computer Ownership (TCO), the MERIT consor-
tium is generating solutions to improve the entire 

business value of distributed
computing environments through

technology from Unicenter TNG.
Using data from MERIT surveys, the MERIT

Advisory Council makes specific recommenda-
tions to help organizations improve their business
value as well as reduce TCO.

This year’s CA Partner Symposium has resulted 
in several new partnering initiatives. CA is com-
mitted to working together to meet customers’

key business requirements and maximize the
business value of technology.

As a result, CA has unified its various certifica-
tion programs and added a new “VIP” initiative
designed to increase company resources for par-
ticipating vendors.

Other news includes an initiative to advance
the use of wireless technology for managing cor-
porate computers and a multi-partner alliance to
deliver comprehensive new end-to-end Internet
business applications.

New Partner
Programs Emerge.

Using Technology
To Improve
Children’s Lives.

Bringing Harmony 
To Information
Chaos.

New ProductFamilies
Revolutionize IT.

Reducing Costs
Through MERIT.

SM

DILBERT® Presents The CA High-Tech Laugh-Of-The-Week.
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This past fiscal year, CA began
full-scale shipment of Jasmine.
The result of a unique partner-
ship with Fujitsu, Jasmine is the
first pure object database offer-
ing an ideal environment for
managing new kinds of complex information —
graphics, animation, audio, and video — required
for next-generation Internet applications.

More than 150,000 developers now have
Jasmine, which is launching a new global indus-
try for Internet applications. More than 40 global
development partners have already used Jasmine
to create new applications.

Jasmine Leads The 
Internet Charge.



CAInTheNews

Look What Unicenter® Is Managing Now.

New European
Headquarters.

Missing Children.

When we say Unicenter can manage anything,
anywhere, we mean it.

As this Formula One MP4/12 car races along at
speeds in excess of 210 miles per hour, pulling 
G-forces that rival a jet fighter plane, it broadcasts
hundreds of megabytes of critical telemetry data
back to the pit crew. They use it to make split-
second decisions that often mean the difference
between victory and defeat.

Unicenter TNG helps the West McLaren
Mercedes race team — one of the winningest
teams in Formula One history — interpret this vital

information through Unicenter TNG’s sophisticated
manager/agent technology, and a revolutionary 
3-D interface. Everything that’s happening, from
the pressure on the left rear brake pad to the
downforce of the chassis setup, can be monitored
and managed through Unicenter TNG.

By looking at this data in a whole new way, the
West McLaren Mercedes race team can now
make smarter decisions in less time.

In a business where hundredths of a second
can mean the world, Unicenter TNG is making 
a difference.

Strengthening its global presence, CA has
announced a new state-of-the-art European head-
quarters. The new facility will be based in the
U.K.’s Thames Valley, and will serve as Europe’s
center for training, research, sales, and technical
support.

The campus will be entirely managed by CA’s
revolutionary Unicenter TNG, which manages com-
puting environments as well as noncomputing
devices, such as heating, ventilation, and tele-
phone services. A Virtual Enterprise Center will
allow CA clients to experience CA software 
running in their own environments.

On May 12, The National Center for Missing and
Exploited Children (NCMEC) launched the “Picture
Them Home” campaign to raise awareness about
the power of pictures, and their importance in the
search for missing children. As a proud supporter
and long-time partner, Computer Associates
underwrote the cost of a Roper Starch Worldwide
poll, which provided critical information to the
NCMEC in its efforts to educate the public and law
enforcement. CA has donated software and ser-
vices to build the NCMEC Web site, including the
recently launched CyberTipline.

Make-A-Wish.
The Make-A-Wish Foundation® of Suffolk County,
Inc. is a nonprofit organization dedicated to 
granting special wishes to children 
suffering from life-threatening illnesses.
Make-A-Wish Foundation of Suffolk
County, Inc. is one of 84 chapters of
the Make-A-Wish Foundation
of America.

With the heartfelt donations of companies like
Computer Associates, Make-A-Wish Foundation of
Suffolk County, Inc. has granted over 575 wishes
since its inception in 1983.

many new products, as well as marketing and
support services to the indirect channels. Twenty-
two new products will now be available for sale
through the indirect/reseller channels, eight of
which will be offered exclusively through those
channels.

These products provide the indirect channel
with both a broader selection of products that 
target a wider market, as well as the opportunity
to upsell more sophisticated versions of the prod-
ucts to larger clients. This is part of a concerted
effort by CA to rapidly grow the revenue from the
indirect channels, in addition to growing them
through its own global direct sales force.

With more than 25,000 attendees and 300
exhibitors, CA-World 1998 set records as the
largest single-company technology conference in
the world. Held April 26 – May 1, 1998, in New
Orleans, the conference combined forces with the
New Orleans Jazz and Heritage Festival to provide
the right mix of fun and learning for attendees.

The conference focused on CA’s core 
enterprise and information management technolo-
gies, in addition to the largest number of user
forums and educational programs to date.

Leading industry analysts called CA-World 
“a golden opportunity to get critical training in a
very pleasant atmosphere.”

At CA-World 1998, CA launched a major new
channel program. Building upon the base of
knowledge gained from the acquisition of
Cheyenne, this new program brings together 

This year, CA launched its Development Buddy
program. In the program, CA clients work side by
side with CA

developers to 
create new
CA-based

solutions,
as well
as to

enhance
existing ones.

As a Development
Buddy, CA clients have

direct input and early
access to new CA 
technology.

Development Buddies also
take an active role in Quality Assurance by pro-
viding a real-world environment for the testing of
new applications.

CA’s Unicenter TNG technology is playing an increas-
ingly important role in Windows NT. Microsoft will be
embedding CA’s Real World Interface™ for Windows
NT with its Windows NT Server operating system.

Built on the Unicenter TNG Framework, this founda-
tion offers manageability of the entire Windows 
environment to users of Windows NT.

Said Microsoft Chairman and CEO Bill Gates:
“As we talk to our enterprise customers, they’re
telling us they want easy access to all manage-
ability data on their Windows-based systems.
We’re pleased that CA’s Real World Interface for
Windows NT provides customers with this data,
further enhancing the manageability of their 
Windows systems.”

Attendance Skyrockets At CA-World.

Microsoft To Ship
Unicenter TNG.

CA Launches 
New Indirect
Channel Program.

Meet “Bud.”The CA
Development Buddy.
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Enterprise
Management

By Lou Thompson

As today’s business executives work to reduce

risks, increase efficiencies, respond to customers,

and add to the bottom line, they wrestle with a

proliferation of information, strive for efficient

global communication, and struggle to keep

their company nimble and responsive. Managing

all the technologies that make this effort possi-

ble has become critical for success, and has

thrust enterprise management into the spotlight.

Recognizing the increasing emphasis 

on enterprise management as a strategic,

mission-critical function, CA is focused on

empowering IT managers with world-class,

fully integrated, scalable, and flexible enter-

prise management solutions.

Making An 
Increasingly Difficult 

Task Easier

E N T E R P R I S E  M A N A G E M E N T



A gives IT managers a business-process

focus rather than a technology focus. For

example, rather than focus on the speed of

the network, the business question is, “Are

we processing orders quickly?” The entire technological infrastructure affects

the answer and is key for any needed solutions. Good business decisions

and improved business processes depend on IT delivering the goods.

At the same time, enterprise management is an increasingly 

complex and difficult task. The IT landscape is a

tangle of new and old technologies: networks

with different protocols; mainframes, desktops,

laptops; legacy systems; intranets, extranets, and the

Internet; old and new software products; videoconferencing, telephones,

and e-mail; multiple platforms, electronic commerce...the systems are

diverse and change rapidly.

CA’s long-standing commitment to heterogeneous environments and

to scalable, customizable, open solutions speaks directly to the complexity

of enterprise management today. Its software provides an efficient, unified

perspective for all management functions for the entire IT infrastructure.

It lets businesses choose complete end-to-end coverage or select tactical

solutions for specific areas on an as-needed basis.

CA is the world’s foremost provider of enterprise management soft-

ware, and is committed to staying in the lead. Its innovative enterprise

management solutions for all businesses, large and small, start with its

flagship product, Unicenter TNG.

Unicenter TNG® (The Next Generation)™ is an innovative, flexible,

and practical enterprise management solution, providing the comprehensive

management capabilities needed to tame

chaotic enterprise environments. First intro-

duced in 1993, Unicenter TNG has so suc-

cessfully met the challenges of managing

complex computer networks which span the

globe that it is an established industry standard. Over 50 of the industry’s

leading companies, including Microsoft, Intel, DIGITAL, Compaq, Novell,

Hewlett-Packard, Sun Microsystems, NetScape, SAP AG, and PeopleSoft,

have recognized Unicenter’s best-of-breed position and have entered into

partnerships with CA to promote and improve enterprise management solutions.

As a complete management suite, Unicenter TNG allows clients to

cost-effectively and reliably control virtually every aspect of their far-flung

and diverse infrastructure, including specialized systems, such as cash

registers, kiosks, and automated tellers, and newer technologies, such as

videoconferencing and component-based applications. Its integrated

management tools let IT departments adapt quickly and easily to the

inevitable growth and change in the enterprise infrastructure, and prevent

the fragmentation of management efforts.

Unicenter TNG also makes enterprise management easier. Its Real

World Interface shows the components of the entire enterprise network 

in realtime graphics, making systems

management intuitive and timely. And

because it uses the latest Internet-based

technology, it allows management of the enter-

prise from virtually anywhere in the world.

In keeping with CA’s commitment to business-relevant IT management,

Unicenter TNG’s unique Business Process Views™ let managers understand

and deploy technical resources according to their business context. IT man-

agers can control an entire business information process, including all the

technical elements, from a business point of view. This results in a higher

level of service to customers, better-informed line-of-business management,

and better business decisions across the board.

Understanding the complexity and diversity of products in use in the

enterprise management field itself, CA announced Unicenter TNG

Framework in July 1997. This product makes available Unicenter’s core

management services, and is a good starting point for many businesses

new to enterprise management. It is distributed by over 40 software and

hardware providers free to their customers, and to date over 3.6 million

copies have gone out. Unicenter TNG Framework is an opportunity to spread

the enterprise management word and CA’s Unicenter name and message.
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C
“The future looks very bright for
Computer Associates’ flagship 
product, Unicenter TNG.”

— Valerie O’Connell
Aberdeen Group

E N T E R P R I S E  M A N A G E M E N T

Enterprise Management Functions

Security Protects organizational assets by controlling access to
systems, networks, and information, including the ability
to audit who did what, when.

Performance Promotes more efficient use of network and systems
capacities by measuring and tuning.

Availability Ensures the health of networks, systems, databases, and
applications.

Storage Locates, retrieves, and backs up data as well as performing
recovery operations in the event of a disaster.

Virus Inoculates storage devices, desktops, servers, networks,
Protection and even removable media against both external and

internal rogue software infections.

Problem Tracks changes and diagnoses failures in order to provide
quick resolution, improve service levels, and predict and  
prevent similar outages.

Software Controls the monitoring, distribution, configuration, and
modification of all the programming assets.

Internet Makes it economical and reliable to conduct electronic
publishing and commerce on the World Wide Web.

Technology Inventories, tracks, and reports on the contents of computer
Assets desktops and servers, including all the software components.

Noncomputing Coordinates the management of nontraditional systems,
Devices such as machine tools or power systems, into the com-

puter network for centralized control.

Unicenter TNG:
The Ultimate Enterprise Management Solution
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nicenter TNG is enterprise management at 

its best. But CA hasn’t stopped there. It’s

already taking its products and customers 

to the next step.

Looking to a future of even more complex enterprise environments,

CA has already taken the next step in enterprise management. With the

announcement of Unicenter TND, The Next Dimension, CA introduced the

concept of managing and controlling the global enterprise from the perspec-

tive of time.

Until now, management tools have been reactive. They have looked

at the system from a single point in time; and when a problem arose, it had

to be solved. But imagine the power of preventing problems before they

occur, especially in mission-critical systems. Redistribution of resources can

happen before the network slows to a

crawl. Upgrades can be planned before a

system crashes.

Proactive enterprise management

sounds futuristic. But Unicenter TND makes

it a reality, using advanced artificial intelli-

gence in the form of neural network agents.

This Neugent™ technology, as we call it, observes the enterprise over time,

learns its behavior patterns, and predicts with quantifiable accuracy the

future outcomes of current events and processes.

Neugent technology also makes Unicenter TND self-adapting to

system changes and emerging technologies. This ability to self-manage will

provide cost and time savings to IT organizations as the enterprise grows.

And managing in this new time dimension isn’t as complex as it

sounds thanks to a user-interface breakthrough. Unicenter TND adds a VCR

analogy to Unicenter TNG’s Real World Interface.

Using VCR-type buttons, IT managers can view

current conditions,fast-forward through predicted

conditions, or rewind to view past conditions.

They can watch past system behaviors and

analyze future-predicted behaviors to decide

when and how to act to prevent problems.

U
The Birth Of A Neugent™

Neural Network Technology Comes Of Age 

CA’s Neugent technology, software agents that apply neural networks

to address compelling business problems, transforms every aspect of

enterprise systems management in bold new ways. Neural network

technology rationalizes the behavior of complex, multidimensional

variables in a way that makes meaningful predictive analysis possible.

Neugent is an intelligent software agent that persists throughout

the various computing environments to recognize certain patterns

and record the resulting transition states. The portability and flexibility

of Neugent technology enable administrators to apply the agents at

the client, server, network, and even application levels.

The Unicenter TND Neugent can alert the administrator to

potential scenarios as they evolve, often before they actualize.

Neugent technology has obvious implications for predicting sys-

tem failures and outages, optimizing performance, and assisting such

disciplines as job scheduling and workload management. But it also

offers prospects for predicting new classes of desirable or undesirable

events, such as avoiding new viruses, by predicting their behavior and

triggering an alert when the precursors to such behaviors are detected.

Computer Associates is the first company to define and develop

Neugent technology, with the announcement of Unicenter TND.

E N T E R P R I S E  M A N A G E M E N T

Unicenter TND:
Step Into The Future With The Next Dimension

“CA is the first vendor to embark on an
initiative that we believe could transform
enterprise management as we presently
know it.”

— Colin Mahoney
The Yankee Group 

“The long-term direction of TND is to 
dramatically reduce labor hours by having
TND anticipate and solve any problems.”

— Peter Kastner
Aberdeen Group 
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CA Introduces 
New Enterprise And 

Workgroup Edition 
Management Products

Unicenter TNG’s loyal following has grown

over the past five years at large and midsized

organizations. But CA recognized that busi-

nesses of all sizes are faced with complex

computer networks and can benefit from

some, if not all, of Unicenter’s management 

capabilities. CA also 

realized that some 

organizations would

rather expand

enterprise manage-

ment in incremental steps

than face an enterprise-wide 

rollout. That’s why we created our 

IT family of channel-ready products.

E N T E R P R I S E  M A N A G E M E N T

AsGood 
As ITGets

By Ellen Wheeler



A announced the IT family of enterprise 

management products in April 1998. The

Enterprise Edition family is based on Unicenter

TNG technology. It contains standalone 

products in the areas of Network, Security, Software Delivery, Help Desk,

Asset Management, Storage, and Web/e-Commerce.

Although these products function as standalone solutions, they also 

integrate seamlessly with each other because they take advantage of

Unicenter TNG Framework and because of their common Unicenter TNG 

heritage. This heritage also ensures that they are state-of-the-art solutions

which exhibit the CA hallmarks: They are customizable and open, and can 

function in heterogeneous environments.

CA98 19

Total Network 
Security

Complete Directory 
Management

Secure Data 
Communication

Maximum Network 
Bandwidth

Total Network
Management

Automated 
Software Delivery

Total Enterprise
Security

Asset And 
Inventory Management

E N T E R P R I S E  M A N A G E M E N T

C “CA’s new Enterprise Editions allow 
clients to get immediate solutions that 
meet their specific targeted needs, while
offering the flexibility of being able to 
participate seamlessly in a complete 
Unicenter TNG implementation at a 
future time.”

— Paul Mason
International Data Corporation

“CA’s clearly articulated product 
strategy only strengthens their 
market-leading position.”

— Valerie O’Connell
Aberdeen Group

New Enterprise And Workgroup Editions 
Complete The Unicenter Family

AimIT TM

ARCserve®IT TM

ControlIT TM

CryptIT TM

DirectIT TM

DoubleIT TM

GuardIT TM

InoculateIT TM

NetworkIT TM

ProtectIT TM

ServiceIT TM

ShipIT TM

✔✔

✔✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔ ✔

Introducing The IT Family Of Products

Workgroup Edition Enterprise Edition 

Enterprise Edition customers have great flexibility and freedom of choice.

They can target their purchase to their specific needs and prioritize how to

expand the management capabilities over time. If changing technologies take

them in a new direction, they can look to other Enterprise Edition products, or

to the full-scale enterprise management solutions, represented by Unicenter

TNG and Unicenter TND.

Enterprise Edition reaches its market through both the CA sales force 

and third-party integrators and resellers. To reach yet another group of cus-

tomers, small companies, and workgroups, CA is focusing on its third-party

distribution channels.



he IT family of products is also available in Workgroup

Editions. The Workgroup Edition is targeted toward 

the single-tiered environments represented by small 

businesses and workgroups, and departments in 

midsized and large corporations. Workgroup

Edition provides standalone manage-

ment products on a small scale for

computing environments of up to

250 users per server.

Like Enterprise Edition,

Workgroup Edition features 

Unicenter TNG-based technology.

It leverages the technology excel-

lence of Unicenter. The result is a

family of substantive management

products that is simple to install 

and easy to use. With Workgroup

Edition, small-scale customers enjoy

sophisticated management

capabilities previously

available only to 

larger organizations.

For the first time,

smaller organizations and

the distribution channels

that serve them will have

access to a complete, cost-

effective set of solutions.

Unicenter Workgroup Edition rounds

out CA’s enterprise management offer-

ings. Through the technical excellence,

scope, and scalability of its Unicenter

products, CA has proven to be willing and able to meet enterprise man-

agement challenges for all businesses—whether they have a handful of

users and one server down the hall or millions of users and thousands of

servers spread around the world.

E N T E R P R I S E  M A N A G E M E N T

Get Function-Specific Software You Want 
At The Price And Size You Need

T
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“The Workgroup Edition 
family is a substantive 
set of simple-to-install,
easy-to-use, shrink-
wrapped management 
applications that is second to none.”

— Valerie O’Connell
Aberdeen Group

Backup Wizard

Select the drive that you want to backup. You can select one 
or more drives to backup.
To backup individual file, double click the drive in which files 
are located.

Backup Source:

My Computer (CPQ2500-CA)

Cancel

Source
Destination
Options
Schedule
Submit Job

C:\ - NTFS
D:\ - NTFS

E:
F:\ - NTFS
G:

Q:\ - NTFS
Registry

Network

“For its target audience,
Workgroup Edition provides 
a big value and a small 

price tag.”
— Peter Kastner

Aberdeen Group
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I N F O R M A T I O N  M A N A G E M E N T

Information
Management

Turning Information 
Into A Competitive 

Advantage
By Ray Allison

Information can be a major advantage in

today’s fiercely competitive global markets.

For more than two decades, Computer

Associates has led the industry in the 

development of solutions that sustain this

advantage by organizing and managing

business-critical information. This year, CA

has raised the bar with a new strategy, called

HarmonyTM, and a series of next-generation

solutions that gives businesses new ways to

manage information for competitive gain.

Harmony. It allows organizations to

exploit new technologies, while integrating

them with the business solutions they

already have — a critical advantage in an

increasingly competitive realm.



that interoperate with products from 

independent software vendors.

Harmony solutions — Jasmine,

Ingres II, and Opal — address all of

today’s organizations’ fundamental

demands. The Harmony infrastructure not

only embraces CA information management tools, but also supports any infor-

mation management solutions, regardless of their platform — mainframe,

UNIX, or Windows NT.

I N F O R M A T I O N  M A N A G E M E N T

Bringing IT All Together—Harmony Reigns “IDC believes Harmony is an innovative 
architecture, and CA has the resources 
and commitment to deliver it.”

— Steve McClure
International Data Corporation

“Users will find that ‘Harmonized’ CA prod-
ucts enable them to adopt new technology 
faster than ever, and make it possible to 
manage these applications more effectively 
once deployed.”

— Karen Mosed
Aberdeen Group

Best of all, businesses can benefit from all these Harmony solutions

today. Clients can target specific problems with one or more of the Harmony

products with full confidence that their investments will not become obsolete.

Individually, Harmony products protect corporate technology investments by

enabling flexible, incremental deployment. Together, Harmony solutions provide

a unified strategy for building next-generation applications. In short, Harmony

gives CA clients a comprehensive strategy for building the information infra-

structure of tomorrow, today.

he demand for information access in the Information

Age has, to date, outstripped the ability to provide it.

Until now. With the Harmony solution suite, CA

offers clients a unified strategy for “future proofing”

their technology investments. Through Harmony, clients

are creating next-generation Internet applications with Jasmine, building

powerful traditional database applications with Ingres II, and modernizing legacy

applications with Opal. Working in concert,

these solutions are bringing today’s organi-

zations the best of all worlds.

CA recognizes that IT infrastructures

are a complex collection of computing

devices, databases, applications, and

networks. The very term “information

chaos” implies that technology environments are intrinsically large and

inherently complex.

Harmony is simplifying the chaos. It provides a common

foundation for disparate technologies, and ties them together with

modern interfaces and development tools. Through the Harmony

strategy, organizations can exploit new technologies, while lever-

aging their existing investments. Harmony supports formal and 

de facto industry standards with an infrastructure that can absorb

emerging standards. And Harmony provides best-of-breed solutions

T
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Entertainment - Jasmine Scene (Running)

™

™

Fiesta Sun Cruises
I N T E R N A T I O N A L  E X C E L L E N C E
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Jasmine
By Andy Phillips

Providing forward-looking technology to help

our clients meet their business objectives

has always been Computer Associates’

goal. This is especially challenging in a

world where new technologies are con-

stantly emerging and continual innovation 

is a standard business requirement. The

Harmony object solution is Jasmine.

Poised For The 
Future, Jasmine 

Emerges Today

I N F O R M A T I O N  M A N A G E M E N T



Jasmine empowers businesses to build

next-generation applications to enter

new markets, increase productivity,

lower costs, and boost revenue 

and productivity.

With Jasmine’s ability to manage and deploy sophisticated multimedia

applications, organizations can deploy content-rich business solutions that

contain new business processes, as well as leverage and integrate existing

processes and information sources.

Jasmine gives corporations and end consumers access to state-of-the-

art business applications. These applications are stable, robust, and secure.

In addition, they are attractive and easy to learn — a must in today’s Internet

environment, where it is impossible to train the millions of potential users of

Internet applications by using traditional methods. Clients such as Toyota,

Template Software, EDS, and American Hotel Register are a small sample of

the growing cadre of businesses deploying next-generation solutions based

on the Harmony object solution — Jasmine.
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asmine is a pure object database and

Internet application development environ-

ment that allows businesses to incorporate

innovative technologies — such as multi-

media, the Internet, extranets, and kiosks — to expand their channels of

product and service delivery.

The Harmony object solution, Jasmine, provides a complete object

infrastructure ideal for deploying next-generation, multimedia Internet appli-

cations. Jasmine works seamlessly with all CA’s Harmony solutions — Opal,

Ingres II, CA-Datacom, and CA-IDMS®, as well as third-party information

management solutions. In so doing, Jasmine resolves the information chaos

found in today’s complex businesses by delivering new next-generation

systems and integrating them with both existing applications and 

information throughout the enterprise.

As an integral part of the Harmony

strategy, Jasmine mirrors the way busi-

nesses work, allowing corporations to

develop business applications easily, yet

accurately representing their business

processes. It is the first and only

industrial-strength object database that

features a multimedia, Internet-enabled application development system.

“IDC expects that Jasmine will be very success- 
ful, propelling the object database management
systems market ‘over the chasm’ and into 
mainstream use.”

— Steve McClure
International Data Corporation

I N F O R M A T I O N  M A N A G E M E N T

J
“Jasmine is the perfect platform on which 
to build Java applications.”

— Dr. M. Ketabchi
Santa Clara University

“Jasmine gives corporations and end 
users access to state-of-the-art 
business applications.”
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Information 
Anywhere, AnytimeTM

By Ed McNealy

Tens of thousands of organizations rely on

CA’s more traditional relational database

solutions to address their evolving require-

ments. The Harmony relational solution,

Ingres II, delivers the latest technologies 

to meet these critical needs. It combines 

the proven reliability and strength of CA’s

relational database technology with the 

ability to access data from virtually any-

where — a critical requirement in today’s

information-driven economy.

I N F O R M A T I O N  M A N A G E M E N T

Ingres II
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ngres II is one of the cornerstones of CA’s Harmony

strategy for uniting the diverse information manage-

ment needs of today’s sophisticated corporations. It

can run on all the popular hardware platforms, and

allows companies to leverage existing data sources and application

investments. Application development and Internet publishing tools 

let businesses create customized applications that reach out to their

partners and consumers. These solutions have a common look and

feel, and integrate information from a wide variety of sources.

Ingres II includes OpenROAD®, an advanced tool for building

industrial-strength n-tier business applications. With OpenROAD,

organizations can create applications that access and leverage infor-

mation stored in any source in the enterprise — including mainframe

and nonmainframe data. In keeping with CA’s Harmony strategy, Ingres II,

Jasmine, and Opal all share a common technology for user-interface devel-

opment. Therefore, their investment in one solution translates to all others.

Many of CA’s customers have large mobile workforces. The ability to

distribute information quickly and efficiently to these employees is key.

Mobile applications such as sales force automation and order processing

directly impact an organization’s ability to generate sales. It is critical that

the data in these applications be accurate and up to date. Ingres II lets

mobile computing users copy data to their laptops or portable devices,

and then leverage it to improve productivity, customer service, and sales.

In keeping with CA’s

emphasis on the future, Ingres II

supports many of today’s lead-

ing business-oriented technolo-

gies, including Java, Data

Warehousing, and Parallel

Database Processing. The ability

to leverage new operating system platforms and capabilities, combined with

the ability to maintain highly available, dynamic systems, provides Ingres II

users with an ideal solution for flexibility and investment protection.

I
“With performance being critical to the
usability of our applications, we needed 
a tool that had the ability to integrate all
our resources and perform very well 
in a client/server environment. Ingres II
was the only solution.”

— Karen Bishop
Management Information Office,
International Missions Board

“We had the whole team evaluate the performance,
and Ingres II simply did the job better than the other
databases.”

— Mark Poole
Harris Semiconductor

I N F O R M A T I O N  M A N A G E M E N T
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By Audrey Watson

Virtually all organizations have significant

investments in legacy applications. CA 

recognizes the value of these mainframe

and enterprise-server systems as they 

continue to be the foundation for most 

companies’ mission-critical applications.

For more than 20 years, CA has 

led the industry in the development of inno-

vative solutions for improving the abilities

and efficiency of legacy applications. As 

part of the Harmony strategy, Opal helps

companies put a “fresh face” on legacy

applications, thereby allowing businesses 

to rejuvenate, integrate, and update the

applications they already have.

I N F O R M A T I O N  M A N A G E M E N T

Protecting The LegacyOpal
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pal, the Harmony legacy solution for

modernizing existing applications,

enables enterprises to integrate and

rejuvenate their business-critical 

systems. In doing so, Opal extends both the life expectancy and value

that these mission-critical applications provide to the enterprise.

As with other Harmony solutions, the knowledge gained by using Opal 

is immediately and seamlessly applied to the use of other Harmony

components.

The Opal Modern Interface allows deployment on traditional PCs,

on network computers, or in a Web browser. Opal provides access to

information from any source in the enterprise. Companies can 

deploy this modernized system over the Internet or intranet, or 

in a traditional client/server

mode — extending the life of

business-critical applications to

a level no other similar solution

can reach.

CA created Opal to

increase the value of legacy

applications by extending their 

life, streamlining their processing, and providing an interface that goes

beyond today’s traditional Windows-based applications. Companies can

deliver this application integration with surprisingly low cost and low risk.

By ensuring that the skills gained by using Opal are easily transferable

to other Harmony components, organizations can take advantage of a com-

plete and unified suite of solutions 

for gaining control of their diverse

information management needs.

O “Opal provides access to information
from any source in the enterprise.”

“Opal’s ability to deploy diverse information sources over 
the Internet makes it a great communications tool for 
customers, vendors, even shareholders.”

— Bill Solomon     
Integrated Concepts, Inc.

“Clearly, Opal addresses a need felt by IS
organizations that must meet the require-
ments of end users, but obviously cannot
throw everything out and start from
scratch.”

—Wayne Kernochan
Aberdeen Group 

I N F O R M A T I O N  M A N A G E M E N T

Opal Integrator   Banking  [Page 1]
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CA. 
Voted The Best Place To Work

By Janet Klein

Every year, CA invests heavily in recruiting the

best and brightest in the industry. Whether it’s

a top computer science graduate student just

beginning a career or an accomplished indus-

try veteran, they are always looking for new 

talent, invaluable experience, and fresh ideas.

Luckily, CA has no problems in attracting

the best. Not many software companies can

match their generous compensation and 

benefits packages. And, equally as important,

few companies can match their dynamic work 

environment. CA is famous for having one of

the fastest career advancement tracks in the

industry.

To bring out the best in every employee,

CA spends millions annually on training and

development programs. They offer virtually 

continuous rounds of technical workshops 

and developer seminars worldwide, and 

generous tuition-reimbursement programs.

CA views this as an investment in the future —

for their employees, and the company.
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A Few Reasons Why CA
Was Chosen The Best Place To Work

CA is a Fortune 500 company,
with over $4.7 billion in revenue
and $1.2 billion in net income.

* Based on 3/31/98 stock price.

For the third year in a row, a

Computerworld survey named 

Computer Associates one of the “Best Places 

To Work” for IS professionals. CA was the 

highest-rated software company among the 

top 100 organizations. Evaluations were based

on a wide range of criteria, including benefits,

salary levels and increases, staff growth and

promotions, turnover rates, employee empowerment, training programs, use

of technology, and diversity in the workplace.

CA offers some of the most competitive compensation and benefits

packages in the industry. With a strong commitment to internal pro-

motion and development, CA offers all its employees plenty of opportunity for

rapid career advancement and substantial financial rewards.

As CA shareholders, thou-

sands of CA employees who

own billions of dollars of CA stock

have benefitted from an amazing

716% rise in the value of CA stock

over the last five years. That trans-

lates to a compound annual growth

rate of 52%. And recently, Business Week ranked CA in the top ten of the

Standard & Poor’s 500 using eight key criteria of financial success.

Computer Associates offers extremely generous 401(k), profit sharing,

and employee stock option plans. Over the years, CA has contributed

tens of millions of dollars towards these employee benefits programs.

As one of the high-tech industry’s most progressive companies,

Computer Associates offers a broad range of employee benefits such

as a corporate-wide commitment to

training and continuing education, sub-

sidized on-site child care (Montesorri

Method), and world-class physical 

fitness facilities.

CA makes more kinds of software for more kinds of computers than

any other company in the world. That enables us to offer our clients

platform-independent solutions.

To encourage continuing education,

Computer Associates offers a generous

tuition-reimbursement program for all its

employees.

With literally thousands of seminars

and training programs held every year, Computer Associates invests 

millions of dollars in employee training and education.

Computer Associates offers full company-paid medical and dental cover-

age for employees, spouses, domestic partners, and other dependents.

At CA, an informal, nonbureaucratic atmosphere and a very flat

management structure encourage and reward entrepreneurial 

spirit, personal ambition, and creativity.

Working Mother magazine named CA one of the 100 Best

Companies in America for Working Mothers in 1997. This award

speaks to CA’s strong commitment to

fostering a corporate culture that is 

sensitive to the needs of working moth-

ers and fathers, and creating a family-

friendly environment.

CA employees tend to have

74% more fun than em-

ployees of other high-tech companies.

Every day, CA serves free break-

fast to thousands of CA

employees. Monday is donut day,

Tuesday is cereal,

Wednesday is bagels,

Thursday is muffins,

and Friday is coffee cake.

CA clients include the world’s leading corporations and 

governments as well as more than 95% of the Fortune 500.

CA employees work on the broadest product portfolio in the 

industry, which includes systems and network management,

database and applications development, and business applications software.

CA is a Fortune

500 company,

with a 22-year track

record of success and a

market capitalization of

over $30 billion.*

CA encourages civic

involvement and volunteerism, with a generous two-for-one charity

matching program. For every dollar a CA employee donates to a charity, CA

matches it with two. CA is a very active corporate supporter of many children’s

charities, including The National Center For Missing and Exploited Children,

Make-A-Wish Foundation of Suffolk County, Inc., and Operation Smile.

CA employees get a chance to work on industry-leading prod-

ucts like CA’s award-winning enterprise management software,

Unicenter, and the revolutionary new object DBMS, Jasmine.

CA offers a fun, exciting,

stimulating, fast-moving,

challenging work environment

that brings out the best in its

employees.
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Report 
of Independent Auditors

Report 
of Management

Stockholders and Board of Directors

Computer Associates International, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets of Computer Associates International, Inc. and sub-

sidiaries as of March 31, 1998 and 1997, and the related 

consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity 

and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

March 31, 1998. These financial statements are the responsi-

bility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on 

our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally

accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial state-

ment presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reason-

able basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements

referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

consolidated financial position of Computer Associates

International, Inc. and subsidiaries at March 31, 1998 and

1997, and the consolidated results of their operations and their

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

March 31, 1998, in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial state-

ments, in fiscal year 1997, the Company changed its method

of accounting for deferred income taxes relating to in-process

research and development acquired in purchase business 

combinations.

New York, New York
May 19, 1998

Management is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and

objectivity of the financial information presented in this Annual

Report. The accompanying consolidated financial statements

have been prepared from accounting records which manage-

ment believes fairly and accurately reflect the operations and

financial positions of the Company. These statements have

been prepared in accordance with generally accepted account-

ing principles, and of necessity include some amounts that are

based on management’s best estimates and judgments.

Management has established a system of internal controls to

provide reasonable assurance that assets are maintained and

accounted for in accordance with its policies, and that transac-

tions are recorded accurately on the Company’s books and

records.

The Company’s Internal Audit Program provides for ongo-

ing evaluation of the adequacy, effectiveness, and adherence to

management’s established policies and procedures. The Board

of Directors exercises its responsibility for these financial state-

ments through its Audit Committee, which consists entirely of

nonmanagement Directors. The independent auditors and 

the internal auditors have full and free access to the Audit

Committee. The Company has distributed to key employees 

its policies for conducting business affairs in an ethical and

professional manner.

The financial statements of the Company have been audit-

ed by Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors. Their accompa-

nying report is based on an audit conducted in accordance with

generally accepted auditing standards, including a review of

internal accounting controls and financial reporting matters.

CHARLES B. WANG
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

PETER A. SCHWARTZ
Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Islandia, New York
May 19, 1998
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Management’s
Discussion and Analysis

Results of Operations
This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements

and information relating to the Company that are based on the

beliefs and assumptions made by the Company’s management

as well as information currently available to management.

When used in this document, the words “anticipate,” “believe,”

“estimate,” “expect,” and similar expressions, are intended to

identify forward-looking statements. Such statements reflect

the current views of the Company with respect to future events

and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions.

Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize,

or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual

results may vary materially from those described herein as

anticipated, believed, estimated or expected. The Company

does not intend to update these forward-looking statements.

Fiscal Year 1998
Total revenue for fiscal year 1998 was $4.7 billion, an increase

of 17% over the $4.0 billion recorded in fiscal year 1997. The

growth is attributable to greater revenue derived from licensing

fees on the midrange platforms as well as a modest increase in

mainframe product revenue related to the continued demand

for less restrictive enterprise licensing pricing options. The

client/server business, including CA’s ARCserve, Ingres II, and

Unicenter, showed strong growth, increasing 44% over fiscal

year 1997. Unicenter TNG (The Next Generation), a family of

integrated business solutions for monitoring and administering

computer systems across platform environments, accounted for

23% of the Company’s overall revenue. Total North American

revenue increased 28% for fiscal year 1998 as a result of

strong acceptance of the Company’s client/server software

solutions and enterprise pricing options. International revenue 

remained unchanged in fiscal year 1998 compared with fiscal

year 1997 due partially to a strengthening of the U.S. Dollar

against most currencies. This unfavorable foreign exchange

environment decreased international revenue by $124 million

when compared to fiscal year 1997. Maintenance revenue

declined 1%, or $7 million in fiscal year 1998. This decrease

reflects the Company’s expanded client/server licensing which

has generated lower maintenance revenue and the ongoing

trend of site consolidations. Price changes did not have a

material impact in either year.

Selling, marketing, and administrative expenses for fiscal

year 1998 increased to 37% of revenue compared to 36% in

fiscal year 1997. The increase represents an investment by the

Company in additional service and support personnel, as well

as major promotional events, including the product launch for

Jasmine, a pure object database solution, and the Unicenter

TNG Framework release. In fiscal year 1998, new and existing

product enhancement, research and development expenditures

increased $51 million, or 16%. Continued emphasis on adapt-

ing and enhancing products for the client/server environment,

in particular Unicenter TNG and Jasmine, a full fiscal year of

Cheyenne product development personnel costs and broaden-

ing of the Company’s Internet/intranet product offerings were

largely responsible for the increase. Commissions and royalties

were approximately 5% of total revenue for both fiscal year

1998 and 1997. Depreciation and amortization expense

decreased $75 million, or 18% in fiscal year 1998 over fiscal

year 1997. The decrease was primarily due to completion 

of the amortization associated with the On-Line Software

International, Inc. and Pansophic Systems, Inc. acquisitions, as

well as the scheduled reduction in amortization associated with

The ASK Group, Inc. and Legent Corporation acquisitions.

This decrease was partially offset by a full year of purchased

software amortization related to the Cheyenne Software, Inc.

acquisition. For fiscal year 1998, net interest expense was

$143 million, an increase of $41 million over fiscal year 1997.

The increase is attributable to non-recurring financing charges

associated with the unsuccessful Computer Sciences

Corporation tender offer and higher debt levels associated with

the Cheyenne acquisition. Fiscal year 1998 pretax profit was

$1.87 billion compared to $932 million in fiscal year 1997.

The pretax amount for fiscal year 1997 includes an after-tax

charge of $598 million relating to the acquisition of Cheyenne

for a write-off of purchased research and development technol-

ogy (R&D) that had not reached the working model stage and

had no alternative future use. Net income per share in fiscal

year 1998, excluding the Computer Sciences Corporation pre-

tax charge of $34 million, would have been $2.10 per share on

a diluted basis, a 24% increase over fiscal year 1997 net

income of $1.69 per share, excluding the Cheyenne purchased

R&D charge of $598 million. The consolidated effective tax rate

for fiscal year 1998, was 37.6% versus 37% in fiscal year

1997 (excluding the research and development charge).

A total of 20.25 million restricted shares were made avail-

able for grant to three key executives under the 1995 Key

Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the “1995 Stock Plan”)

approved by the stockholders at the August 1995 Annual

Meeting. An initial grant of 6.75 million restricted shares was

made to the executives at inception of the 1995 Stock Plan.

In January 1996, based on the achievement of a price target

for the Company’s common stock, 1.35 million shares (20%) of

the initial grant vested, subject to continued employment of the

executives through March 31, 2000. Accordingly, the Company

began recognizing compensation expense associated with the 

1.35 million shares over the employment period. Annual com-

pensation expense of $7 million has been charged against

income for each of the years ended March 31, 1998, 1997,

and 1996. Additional grants of the remaining 13.5 million

shares available under the 1995 Stock Plan were made based

on the achievement of certain price targets. These additional

grants and the unvested portion of the initial grant are subject

to risk of forfeiture through March 31, 2000, and further sub-

ject to significant limitations on transfer during the seven years

following vesting.

If the closing price of the Company’s stock on the New

York Stock Exchange exceeds $53.33 for 60 trading days with-

in any twelve-month period, all 20.25 million shares under the

1995 Stock Plan will vest immediately, and will no longer be

subject to forfeiture. A one-time pretax charge of approximately

$1.2 billion will be recorded in the period in which the sixtieth

trading day occurs. As of May 19, 1998, the closing price of

the Company’s common stock had exceeded $53.33 for 58

trading days beginning October 21, 1997.

Fiscal Year 1997
Total revenue for fiscal year 1997 was $4.0 billion, an increase

of 15% over the $3.5 billion recorded in fiscal year 1996. This

increase reflects the expanded demand for the Company’s

products, particularly its Unicenter family. The Cheyenne desk-

top and local area network products acquired in November

1996 contributed marginally to the increase. Revenue in North

America increased 40% for fiscal year 1997 due to strong

acceptance of the Company’s client/server software solutions

and the ongoing increases in client computing capacity needs

(as measured in MIPS). International revenue decreased 9% in

fiscal year 1997 compared with fiscal year 1996. This was 
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caused by a combination of operational difficulties experienced

in refocusing the European sales and marketing resources from

mainframe to client/server sales opportunities exacerbated by

local economic conditions including a weakening of the local

currencies against the U.S. Dollar. Maintenance revenue

increased 2%, or $11 million in fiscal year 1997. This increase

is due in part to the addition of a full year of Legent mainte-

nance revenue, partially offset by the ongoing trend of site 

consolidations, and escalating client/server revenue which 

generate lower maintenance revenue. Foreign exchange rate

movements negatively affected total revenue in fiscal year

1997 by approximately $43 million or slightly more than 1%.

Price changes did not have a material impact in either year.

Selling, marketing, and administrative expenses for fiscal

year 1997 decreased to 36% of revenue from 39% in fiscal

year 1996. This reduction is a function of the continued corpo-

rate-wide effort to reduce fixed and administrative costs as well 

as operating efficiencies realized from integration of the

Cheyenne and Legent acquisitions. In fiscal year 1997, new

product and enhancement research and development expendi-

tures increased $33 million, or 12%. The continued emphasis

on adapting products for the client/server environments and the

addition of Cheyenne development personnel were largely

responsible for this increase. Commissions and royalties were

approximately 5% of total revenue for both fiscal year 1997

and 1996. Depreciation and amortization expense increased

$20 million, or 5% in fiscal year 1997 over fiscal year 1996.

This rise is largely the result of an additional $31 million 

associated with the Cheyenne acquisition partially offset by

decreased amortization from previous acquisitions. For fiscal

year 1997, net interest expense was $102 million, an increase

of $31 million over fiscal year 1996. The increase is attribut-

able to the higher debt levels associated with borrowings used

to finance the Cheyenne acquisition.

Fiscal year 1997 had a pretax profit of $932 million com-

pared to the pretax loss of $100 million in fiscal year 1996.

The pretax amounts for both fiscal years 1997 and 1996

include a write-off of purchased research and development

technology that had not reached the working model stage and

has no alternative future use relating to the acquisitions of

Cheyenne and Legent of $598 million and $1,303 million,

respectively. Excluding these charges, pretax income for fiscal

year 1997 was $1,530 million compared to $1,203 million in

fiscal year 1996, an increase of $327 million, or 27%. The

consolidated effective tax rate, excluding the research and

development charges for fiscal year 1997 was 37% versus

37.5% in fiscal year 1996. Including the aforementioned pur-

chased research and development charge, net income for fiscal

year 1997 was $366 million compared to a net loss of $56

million for fiscal year 1996. Without these charges in fiscal

years 1997 and 1996, net income would have been $964 

million, or $1.69 per share (diluted), and $752, or $1.32 per

share (diluted), respectively.

The Company has traditionally reported lower profit mar-

gins in the first two quarters of each fiscal year than those

experienced in the third and fourth quarters. As part of the

annual budget process, management establishes higher discre-

tionary expense levels in relation to projected revenue for the

first half of the year. Historically, the Company’s combined third

and fourth quarter revenue has been greater than the first half

of the year, as these two quarters coincide with clients’ calen-

dar year budget periods and culmination of the Company’s

annual sales plan. These historically higher second half rev-

enues have resulted in significantly higher profit margins since

total expenses have not increased in proportion to revenue.

However, past financial performance should not be considered

to be a reliable indicator of future performance.

The Company’s products are designed to improve the pro-

ductivity and efficiency of its clients’ information processing

resources. Accordingly, in a recessionary environment, the

Company’s products are often a reasonable economic alterna-

tive to customers faced with the prospect of incurring expen-

ditures to increase their existing information processing

resources. However, a general or regional slowdown in 

the world economy could adversely affect the Company’s 

operations.

The Company’s future operating results may be affected

by a number of other factors, including, but not limited to:

uncertainties relative to global economic conditions; the ade-

quacy of the Company’s internal administrative systems to 

efficiently process transactions, store and retrieve data subse-

quent to the year 2000; the Company’s increasing reliance on

a single family of products for a material portion of its sales;

market acceptance of competing technologies; the availability

and cost of new solutions; delays in delivery of new products 

or features; the Company’s ability to update its business appli-

cation products to conform with the new, common European

currency known as the “Euro;” the Company’s ability to suc-

cessfully maintain or increase market share in its core business

while expanding its product base into other markets; the

strength of its distribution channels; the ability either internally

or through third-party service providers to support client imple-

mentation of the Company’s products; the Company’s ability to

manage fixed and variable expense growth relative to revenue

growth; and the Company’s ability to effectively integrate

acquired products and operations.

The Company may experience further uncertainties and

unanticipated costs regarding Year 2000 compliance of its

products. The Company has designed the current version of 

the vast majority of its product offerings to be Year 2000 

Selected Unaudited Quarterly Information
(In millions, except per share amounts)

1998 Quarterly Results June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 Mar. 31(1) Total

Revenue $ 891 $1,122 $1,239 $1,467 $4,719
Percent of total revenue 19% 24% 26% 31% 100% 
Net income 156 272 340 401 1,169
– Basic earnings per share (3) $  .29 $   .49 $   .62 $.74 $  2.14
– Diluted earnings per share (3) $.28 .48 $.60 $.71 $2.06

1997 Quarterly Results June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31(2) Mar. 31 Total

Revenue $ 792 $ 990 $ 1,053 $ 1,205 $ 4,040
Percent of total revenue 20% 24% 26% 30% 100%
Net income (loss) 120 223 (313) 336 366
– Basic earnings (loss) per share (3) $  .22 $  .40 $    (.57) $    .62 $    .67
– Diluted earnings (loss) per share (3) $.21 $.39 (.57) $.60 .64

(1) Includes an after-tax charge of $21 million related to the Company’s unsuccessful tender offer for Computer Sciences Corporation.

(2) Includes an after-tax write-off of $598 million related to the acquisition of Cheyenne Software, Inc. in November 1996. See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information.

(3) Adjusted to reflect three-for-two stock splits effective June 19, 1996 and November 5, 1997.
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compliant. However, there is currently a small minority of its

product offerings that have not been updated to Year 2000

compliance specifications. The Company is making its best

efforts to address this issue and will continue to update and

test its products for Year 2000 compliance. The Company has

publicly identified any products that will not be updated to be

Year 2000 compliant and has been encouraging clients using

these products to migrate to compliant versions or products.

There can be no assurance that all the Company’s products will

be Year 2000 compliant prior to January 1, 2000, nor can

there be assurances that the Company’s currently compliant

products do not contain undetected problems associated with

Year 2000 compliance. Such problems may negatively affect

future operating results.

The Company recognizes the significance of the Year

2000 problem as it relates to its internal systems. It has an

overall plan and a systematic process in place to make its

internal financial and administrative systems Year 2000-ready

within the next 12 to 18 months. The cost of this exercise is

not viewed to have a material effect on the Company’s results

of operations or liquidity. Contingency plans have also been

developed such that any failure to convert will not adversely

affect overall performance.

Foreign Currency Exchange
Continued uncertainty in world economies and currency mar-

kets caused an additional strengthening of the U.S. Dollar dur-

ing fiscal year 1998. Approximately 34% of the Company’s

total revenue in fiscal year 1998, 40% in fiscal year 1997, and

50% in fiscal year 1996, was derived from sales outside of

North America. Western Europe is the Company’s most impor-

tant foreign market. The Company believes that its operations

outside the U.S. are located in countries which are politically

and economically stable, with the possible exception of finan-

cial volatility in certain Asian markets. The net income effect of

foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations versus the U.S.

Dollar on international revenue is largely offset to the extent

expenses of the Company’s international operations are

incurred and paid for in the same currencies as those of its

revenue. During fiscal year 1998, the net income effect of for-

eign exchange transaction losses was approximately $9 million.

A foreign currency translation adjustment of $84 million was

charged to Stockholders’ Equity in fiscal year 1998. As part of

its risk management strategy and consistent with prior years,

the Company did not enter into any foreign exchange derivative

transactions during fiscal year 1998.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Company’s cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securi-

ties of $310 million at March 31, 1998 increased by approxi-

mately $111 million from the prior fiscal year. Cash generated

from operations totaled $1,040 million for the fiscal year ended

March 31, 1998, a 32% increase over the prior year. The

increase was driven by higher net income. Accounts receivable

balances increased during fiscal 1998, as customers continued

to demonstrate a preference for financing their licensing fees.

The Company offers installment payment plans as a competi-

tive advantage during the sales process. The Company used

cash generated from operations primarily for bank debt repay-

ments of $630 million and for treasury stock purchases of

$163 million.

At March 31, 1998, the cumulative number of shares 

purchased under the Company’s various open market Common

Stock repurchase programs was approximately 121 million

shares, including approximately 3.7 million shares for the year

just ended. The remaining number of shares authorized for

repurchase under these programs at March 31, 1998 is

approximately 42 million. All references to number of shares

reflect the November 1997 three-for-two stock split.

The Company employs a variety of financial alternatives 

to build a capital structure capable of supporting its strategic

objectives. On June 30, 1997, the Company replaced its exist-

ing credit facilities with a $1.1 billion 364-day revolving credit

facility and a $1.5 billion five-year revolving credit facility. In the

quarter ended December 31, 1997, the Company started con-

struction of its European headquarters in the United Kingdom.

On February 24, 1998, Quick Access Inc., (a wholly owned

subsidiary) entered into an 85 million pound sterling (approxi-

mately U.S. $142 million) 364-day revolving credit facility to

finance this construction. Under all of the above credit facilities,

borrowings are subject to interest primarily at the prevailing

London InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) subject to a fixed

spread which is dependent on the achievement of certain

financial ratios. The Company is also required to maintain 

certain financial conditions.

Peak borrowings under these facilities during fiscal year

1998 totaled $2,070 million. At March 31, 1998, $1,233 

million was outstanding under these credit facilities. In addition,

$320 million remains outstanding under the Company’s 6.77%

Senior Notes. The weighted average interest rate for these bor-

rowings was 6.31%. The Company also maintains $24 million

of unsecured and uncommitted multicurrency lines of credit.

These facilities were established to meet any short-term 

working capital requirements for subsidiaries located outside

the U.S.

In addition to the construction of the U.K. headquarters,

capital resource requirements as of March 31, 1998 consisted

of lease obligations for office space, computer equipment,

mortgage or loan obligations, and amounts due as a result of

product and company acquisitions. It is expected that existing

cash, cash equivalents, short-term marketable securities, the

availability of borrowings under credit lines, as well as cash

provided from operations, will be sufficient to meet ongoing

cash requirements. Refer to Notes 6 and 7 of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements for details concerning 

commitments.

On April 24, 1998, the Company issued $1.75 billion of

unsecured Senior Notes. Amounts borrowed, rates and maturi-

ties for each issue were $575 million at 6-1/4% due April 15,

2003, $825 million at 6-3/8% due April 15, 2005 and $350

million at 6-1/2% due April 15, 2008. Proceeds were used to

repay borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit facili-

ties and for general corporate purposes. These Senior Notes

enabled the Company to extend the maturity of its debt, com-

mit to an attractive fixed rate of interest, and broaden the

Company’s sources of liquidity. Debt ratings for the Company’s

senior unsecured notes and its bank credit facilities are Baa1

and A– from Moody’s Investor Services and Standard & Poor’s,

respectively.
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March 31,
ASSETS 1998 1997

(Dollars in millions)

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 251 $ 143
Marketable securities 59 56
Trade and installment accounts receivable, net 1,859 1,514
Other current assets 86 67

Total Current Assets 2,255 1,780

Installment Accounts Receivable, net, due after one year 2,490 2,200

Property and Equipment
Land and buildings 357 349
Equipment, furniture and improvements 501 438

858 787
Allowance for depreciation and amortization 399 349

Total Property and Equipment 459 438

Purchased Software Products, net of accumulated
amortization of $1,305 and $1,079 289 440

Excess of Cost Over Net Assets Acquired, net of 
accumulated amortization of $205 and $139 1,099 1,159

Other Assets 114 67
Total Assets $6,706 $6,084

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated
Balance Sheets

March 31,
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 1998 1997

(Dollars in millions)

Current Liabilities
Loans payable and current portion of long-term debt $ 571 $ 548
Accounts payable 153 124
Salaries, wages and commissions 157 140
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 297 324
Taxes, other than income taxes 76 66
Federal, state and foreign income taxes payable 345 265
Deferred income taxes 277 260

Total Current Liabilities 1,876 1,727

Long-Term Debt, net of current portion 1,027 1,663

Deferred Income Taxes 952 853

Deferred Maintenance Revenue 370 338

Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock, $.10 par value, 1,100,000,000 shares authorized,

630,920,576 shares issued* 63 63
Additional paid-in capital 523 497
Retained earnings 2,886 1,757
Equity adjustment (104) (27)
Treasury stock, at cost — 84,869,026 shares for 1998 and 

87,967,888 shares for 1997* (887) (787)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 2,481 1,503

Total Liabilites and Stockholders’ Equity $6,706 $6,084

*Share amounts adjusted for three-for-two stock splits effective June 19, 1996 and November 5, 1997.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated
Statements of Operations

Year Ended March 31,
1998 1997 1996

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Revenue
Product revenue and other related income $3,986 $3,300 $2,776
Maintenance fees 733 740 729

Total Revenue 4,719 4,040 3,505

Costs and Expenses
Selling, marketing and administrative 1,751 1,465 1,368
Product development and enhancements 369 318 285
Commissions and royalties 233 201 174
Depreciation and amortization 349 424 404
Interest expense, net 143 102 71
Purchased research and development — 598 1,303

Total Costs and Expenses 2,845 3,108 3,605

Income (loss) before income taxes 1,874 932 (100)
Income taxes (benefit) 705 566 (44)
Net Income (Loss) $1,169 $ 366 $ (56)

Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share $ 2.14 $ .67 $ (.10)
Basic weighted average shares used in computation* 546 546 543

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share $ 2.06 $ .64 $ (.10)
Diluted weighted average shares used in computation* 566 569 543

*Share amounts adjusted for three-for-two stock splits effective August 21, 1995, June 19, 1996, and November 5, 1997.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Additional Total
Common Paid-In Retained Equity Treasury Stockholders’
Stock(2) Capital(2) Earnings Adjustment Stock Equity

(Dollars in millions)

Balance at March 31, 1995 $63 $479 $1,516 $57 $(537) $1,578
Net loss (56) (56)
Dividends declared 

($.061 per share)(2) (34) (34)
Exercise of Common Stock 

options and other (7) 7 32 32
401(k) discretionary contribution 10 5 15
Translation adjustment in 1996 (25) (25)
Net change attributable to unrealized gain 

on marketable securities 2 2
Purchases of treasury stock (30) (30)

Balance at March 31, 1996 63 482 1,426 41 (530) 1,482
Net income 366 366
Dividends declared 

($.065 per share)(2) (35) (35) 
Exercise of Common Stock 

options and other 2 7 57 66
401(k) discretionary contribution 13 3 16
Translation adjustment in 1997 (74) (74)
Net change attributable to unrealized loss 

on marketable securities (1) (1)
Purchases of treasury stock (317) (317)

Balance at March 31, 1997 63 497 1,757 (27) (787) 1,503
Net income 1,169 1,169
Dividends declared 

($.073 per share)(2) (40) (40) 
Exercise of Common Stock 

options and other 18 7 59 84
401(k) discretionary contribution 8 4 12
Translation adjustment in 1998 (84) (84)
Purchases of treasury stock (163) (163)

Balance at March 31, 1998 $63 $523 $2,886 $(104)(1) $(887) $2,481

(1) Represents foreign currency translation adjustment of $(124) million and $20 million of restricted stock.
(2) Amounts adjusted for three-for-two stock splits effective August 21, 1995, June 19, 1996, and November 5, 1997.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business: Computer Associates International,

Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) designs, develops, mar-

kets, licenses, and supports a wide range of integrated com-

puter software products.

Principles of Consolidation: Significant intercompany items

and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The

Company has various investments which it accounts for under

the equity method of accounting. These investments are not

significant either individually or when considered collectively.

The Company’s share of investment income or loss is included

in selling, marketing and administrative expenses.

Basis of Revenue Recognition: Product license fee revenue is

recognized after both acceptance by the client and delivery of

the product. Maintenance revenue, whether bundled with prod-

uct license or priced separately, is recognized ratably over the

maintenance period. Accounts receivable resulting from product

sales with extended payment terms are discounted to present

value. The amounts of the discount credited to revenue for the

years ended March 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996 were $356 

million, $271 million, and $215 million, respectively.

Marketable Securities: The Company considers all highly liquid

investments with a maturity of three months or less when pur-

chased to be cash equivalents.

The Company has evaluated its investment policies con-

sistent with Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement

No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity

Securities (“FASB 115”), and determined that all of its invest-

ment securities are to be classified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value, with the

unrealized gains and losses reported in Stockholders’ Equity

under the caption Equity Adjustment. The amortized cost of

debt securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and

accretion of discounts to maturity. Such amortization is includ-

ed in interest income. Realized gains and losses and declines

in value judged to be other-than-temporary on available-for-

sale securities are included in interest income. The cost of 

securities sold is based on the specific identification method.

Interest and dividends on securities classified as available-for-

sale are included in interest income.

Property and Equipment: Land, buildings, equipment, furniture,

and improvements are stated at cost. Depreciation and amorti-

zation are provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets

by the straight-line method. Building and improvements are

generally estimated to have 30 – 40 year lives and the remain-

ing property and equipment are estimated to have 5 – 7 year

lives.

Intangibles: Excess of cost over net assets acquired is being

amortized by the straight-line method over 20 years. Costs of

purchased software, acquired rights to market software prod-

ucts, and software development costs (costs incurred after

development of a working model or a detailed program design)

are capitalized and amortized by the straight-line method over

five years or based on the product’s useful economic life, com-

mencing with product release. Unamortized capitalized develop-

ment costs included in other assets at March 31, 1998 and

1997 were $62 million and $54 million, respectively. Amor-

tization of capitalized development costs was $15 million, $17

million, and $19 million for the fiscal years ended March 31,

1998, 1997, and 1996, respectively.

Net Income per Share: The Company adopted the Financial

Accounting Standards Board Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards (“SFAS”) No. 128, “Earnings per Share” as of

December 31, 1997. SFAS No. 128 requires the Company to

present “basic” and “diluted” earnings per share (EPS) on the

face of the income statement. Basic earnings per share is com-

puted by dividing net income by the weighted-average number

of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings

per share is computed by dividing net income by the sum of

the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding

for the period plus the assumed exercise of all dilutive securi-

ties, such as stock options. Diluted earnings per share for the

periods presented is not materially different from Net Income

per share reported under Accounting Principles Board Opinion

No. 15.

Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements

Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended March 31,
Operating Activities 1998 1997 1996

(Dollars in millions)

Net income (loss) $1,169 $   366 $   (56)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 349 424 404
Provision for deferred income taxes (benefit) 141 221 (290)
Charge for purchased research and development — 598 1,303
Compensation expense related to stock and pension plans 21 22 19
Increase in noncurrent installment accounts receivable, net (377) (575) (590)
Increase (decrease) in deferred maintenance revenue 41 (23) 37
Foreign currency transaction loss (gain) — before taxes 15 11 (2)
Changes in other operating assets and liabilities,
net of effects of acquisitions:

Increase in trade and installment receivables (409) (341) (262)
Other changes in operating assets and liabilities 90 87 56

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 1,040 790 619

Investing Activities
Acquisitions, primarily purchased software, marketing rights

and intangibles (61) (1,191) (1,787)
Purchases of property and equipment (84) (53) (21)
Purchases of marketable securities (42) (51) (54)
Sales of marketable securities 39 99 136
Increase in capitalized development costs and other (23) (18) (16)

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (171) (1,214) (1,742)

Financing Activities

Dividends (40) (35) (34)
Purchases of treasury stock (163) (317) (30)
Proceeds from borrowings 23 1,480 1,720
Repayments of borrowings (630) (710) (570)
Exercise of common stock options and other 62 53 22

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Financing Activities (748) 471 1,108

Increase (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents Before Effect 
Of Exchange Rate Changes On Cash 121 47 (15)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (13) (1) (5)

Increase (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents 108 46 (20)

Cash And Cash Equivalents — Beginning Of Year 143 97 117

Cash And Cash Equivalents — End Of Year $   251 $   143 $ 97

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Note 2 — Acquisitions
On November 11, 1996, the Company acquired 98% of the

issued and outstanding shares of common stock of Cheyenne

Software, Inc. (“Cheyenne”), and on December 2, 1996 merged

into Cheyenne one of its wholly owned subsidiaries. The aggre-

gate purchase price of approximately $1.2 billion was funded

from drawings under the Company’s $2 billion credit agree-

ments. Cheyenne was engaged in the design, development,

marketing, and support of storage, management, security, and

communications software for desktops and distributed enter-

prise networks. The acquisition was accounted for as a pur-

chase. The results of Cheyenne’s operations have been com-

bined with those of the Company since the date of acquisition.

The Company recorded a $598 million after-tax charge against

earnings for the write-off of purchased Cheyenne research and

development technology that had not reached the working

model stage and had no alternative future use. Research and

development charges are generally based upon a discounted

cash flow analysis. Had this charge not been taken during the

quarter ended December 31, 1996, net income and diluted

earnings per share for the year ended March 31, 1997 would

have been $964 million, or $1.69 per share.

On August 1, 1995, the Company acquired 98% of the 

issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock of Legent

Corporation (“Legent”), and on November 6, 1995 merged into

Legent one of its wholly owned subsidiaries. The aggregate pur-

chase price of approximately $1.8 billion was funded from

drawings under the Company’s $2 billion credit agreement

dated as of July 24, 1995. Legent was engaged in the design,

development, marketing, and support of a broad range of com-

puter software products for the management of information

systems used to manage mainframe, midrange, server, work-

station and PC systems deployed throughout a business enter-

prise. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase. The

results of Legent’s operations have been combined with those

of the Company since the date of the acquisition.

The Company recorded an $808 million after-tax charge

against earnings for the write-off of purchased Legent research

and development technology that had not reached the working

model stage and had no alternative future use. Had this charge

not been taken, net income for the fiscal year ended March 31,

1996 would have been $752 million, or diluted earnings per

share of $1.32.

The following table reflects pro forma combined results of

operations of the Company, Legent, and Cheyenne on the basis

that the acquisitions had taken place at the beginning of fiscal

year 1996. The after-tax charges of $598 million and $808 

million related to the Cheyenne and Legent acquisitions are

reflected in only the fiscal year 1996 pro forma combined

results of operations:

Year Ended March 31,
1998(1) 1997 1996

(Amounts in millions, except per share amounts)

Revenue $4,719 $4,175 $3,789
Net income (loss) 1,169 920 (775)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 2.14 $  1.68 $ (1.43)
Shares used in computation* 546 546 543
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 2.06 $  1.62 $ (1.43)
Shares used in computation* 566 569 543
(1) There were no significant acquisitions in fiscal year 1998. Fiscal

year 1998 results include full-year operations of the Company,
Legent and Cheyenne, and are presented for comparision purposes
only.

*Adjusted for three-for-two stock splits effective August 21, 1995,
June 19, 1996, and November 5, 1997.

In management’s opinion, the pro forma combined results of opera-
tions are not indicative of the actual results that would have occured
had the acquisitions been consummated at the beginning of fiscal year
1996 or of future operations of the combined companies under the
ownership and operation of the Company.

Note 3 — Investments
The following is a summary of cash equivalents and marketable

securities classified as “available-for-sale” securities as

required by FASB 115:
Gross Estimated

Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Value

(Dollars in millions)

March 31, 1998:
Debt securities $  59 — $  59

March 31, 1997:
Debt securities $  56 — $  56

March 31, 1996:
Debt securities $104 $   1 $105

For years ended March 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996, no debt securities
were deemed to be Cash and Cash Equivalents.

Year Ended March 31,
Diluted Earnings Per Share* 1998 1997 1996

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Net income (loss) $1,169 $366 $(56)
Weighted average shares outstanding,

and common share equivalents 566 569 543(1)

Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 2.06 $ .64 $(.10)
Diluted Share Computation:

Average common shares outstanding 546 546 543(1)

Average options outstanding — net 19 22 —
1995 Stock Plan average shares 
outstanding — net 1 1 —

Weighted average shares outstanding,
and common share equivalents 566 569 543(1)

(1) For the year ended March 31, 1996, the Company reported a net loss.
Common share equivalents are anti-dilutive and are, therefore, not 
reported.

* Share and per share amounts adjusted to reflect three-for-two stock splits
effective August 21, 1995, June 19, 1996, and November 5, 1997.

Statement of Cash Flows: Interest payments for the years

ended March 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996 were $157 million,

$89 million, and $76 million, respectively. Income taxes paid

for these fiscal years were $470 million, $300 million, and

$144 million, respectively.

Translation of Foreign Currencies: In translating financial

statements of foreign subsidiaries, all assets and liabilities are

translated using the exchange rate in effect at the balance

sheet date. All revenue, costs and expenses are translated

using an average exchange rate. Net income (loss) includes

exchange gains (losses) of approximately $(9) million in 1998,

$(7) million in 1997, and $1 million in 1996.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

accompanying notes. Although these estimates are based on

management’s knowledge of current events and actions it may

undertake in the future, they may ultimately differ from actual

results.

New Accounting Pronouncements: In October 1997, the

Accounting Standards Executive Committee issued Statement

of Position (“SOP”) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” as

amended in March 1998 by Statement of Position 98-4. These

SOP’s provide guidance on applying generally accepted

accounting principles in recognizing revenue on software trans-

actions and are effective for the Company’s transactions

entered into subsequent to March 31, 1998. Definitive, detailed

implementation guidelines for the new standards have not been

issued. This guidance could lead to unanticipated changes in

the Company’s operational and revenue accounting practices.

Such changes may affect sales or revenue recognition prac-

tices, increase administrative costs, and otherwise adversely

modify existing operations.

During fiscal 1997, the Company has adopted the disclo-

sure only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards (FAS) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based

Compensation.” In accordance with the provisions of FAS 

No. 123, the Company applies APB 25 and related interpreta-

tions in accounting for its stock-based plans.

Emerging Issues Task Force No. 96-7, “Accounting for

Deferred Taxes on In-Process Research and Development

Activities Acquired in a Purchase Business Combination,”

became effective on May 23, 1996. As provided therein,

deferred taxes will no longer be provided on the initial differ-

ences between the amounts assigned to in-process research

and development costs acquired in a business purchase com-

bination for financial reporting and tax purposes, and in-

process research and development will be charged to expense

on a gross basis at acquisition. The effect of this change was

to decrease net income by $221 million, or $.39 per share on

a diluted basis, in fiscal year 1997 as a result of not providing

a deferred tax benefit.
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Note 5 —Trade and Installment Accounts
Receivable

Trade and installment accounts receivable consist of the 

following:
March 31,

1998 1997
(Dollars in millions)

Current receivables $2,655 $2,220
Less: Allowance for uncollectible amounts (210) (191)

Unamortized discount and maintenance fees (586) (515)
$1,859 $1,514

Non-current receivables $3,719 $3,244
Less: Allowance for uncollectible amounts (36) (36)

Unamortized discount and maintenance fees (1,193) (1,008)
$2,490 $2,200

The provisions for uncollectible amounts for the years

ended March 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996 were $71 million,

$110 million, and $71 million, respectively, and are included in

selling, marketing and administrative expenses.

Note 6 — Debt
In fiscal year 1998, the Company replaced $2 billion of its

unsecured credit facilities with a $1.1 billion 364-day credit

facility and a $1.5 billion five-year revolving credit facility. These

credit facilities provide for interest at the prevailing London

InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a margin, and require the

Company to maintain certain financial ratios. Interest margins

and commitment fees are based upon the Company’s achieve-

ment of certain financial ratios. At March 31, 1998 and March

31, 1997, $1,210 million and $1,840 million, respectively, was

outstanding under the credit facilities then available. The effec-

tive pretax interest rate at March 31, 1998 was approxi-

mately 6%.

On February 24, 1998, Quick Access Inc., (a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company) entered into an 85 million pounds

sterling (approximately U.S. $142 million) 364-day revolving

credit facility to finance the construction of a European head-

quarters in the United Kingdom. The facility requires the

Company to maintain certain financial conditions, and borrow-

ing costs and fees are based upon achievement of certain

financial ratios. The credit facility’s interest is calculated at the

prevailing LIBOR for pounds sterling plus a margin. At March

31, 1998, 14 million pounds sterling (approximately U.S. $23

million) was outstanding under this credit facility with an inter-

est rate of approximately 7.8%.

At March 31, 1998 and 1997, the Company had $320

million of unsecured Senior Notes outstanding at a fixed rate of

interest of 6.77%. The final maturity of this debt (less required

amortization) is due in the year 2003.

Unsecured and uncommitted multicurrency credit facilities

of $24 million are also available to meet any short-term work-

ing capital requirements and can be drawn upon, up to a pre-

defined limit, by most subsidiaries. Under these multicurrency

facilities, approximately $3 million and $5 million was drawn at

March 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

At March 31, 1998 and 1997, the Company had various

other fixed rate debt obligations outstanding carrying annual

interest rates ranging from 6% to 7-1/2% totaling approxi-

mately $42 million and $46 million, respectively.

The Company conducts an ongoing review of its capital

structure and debt obligations as part of its risk management

strategy. To date, the Company has not entered into any form 

of derivative transactions related to its debt instruments. The

fair market value of long-term debt approximates its carrying

value. The maturities of long-term debt outstanding for the 

next five fiscal years are as follows: 1999—$571 million,

2000—$738 million, 2001—$69 million, 2002—$80 million,

and 2003—$65 million.

Interest expense for the years ended March 31, 1998,

1997, and 1996 was $147 million, $104 million, and $81 

million, respectively.

On April 24, 1998, the Company issued $1.75 billion of

unsecured Senior Notes in a transaction governed by Rule

144A under the Securities Act of 1933. The Company intends

to promptly register the Notes with the Securities and Exchange

Commission. $575 million of the Notes are due 2003, $825

million of the Notes are due 2005, and $350 million of the

Notes are due 2008. The 2003 Notes pay interest at 6-1/4%,

the 2005 Notes pay interest at 6-3/8%, and the 2008 Notes

pay interest at 6-1/2%. All interest is paid semiannually. The

proceeds were used to repay all indebtedness outstanding

under the Company’s $1.1 billion and $1.5 billion credit facili-

ties and for other general corporate purposes.

Note 4 — Geographic Area Information and Foreign Operations
United States Foreign (a) Eliminations Total

(Dollars in millions)

March 31, 1998:
Revenue:

To unaffiliated customers $2,994 $1,725 — $4,719
Between geographic areas (b) 373 — $(373) —

Total Revenue 3,367 1,725 (373) 4,719

Net income 990 179 — 1,169
Identifiable assets 5,326 1,874 (494) 6,706
Total liabilities 3,373 1,346 (494) 4,225

March 31, 1997:
Revenue:

To unaffiliated customers $2,315 $1,725 — $4,040
Between geographic areas (b) 335 — $(335) —

Total Revenue 2,650 1,725 (335) 4,040

Net income 101 265 — 366
Identifiable assets 4,584 2,014 (514) 6,084
Total liabilities 3,791 1,304 (514) 4,581

March 31, 1996:
Revenue:

To unaffiliated customers $1,678 $1,827 — $3,505
Between geographic areas (b) 403 — $(403) —

Total Revenue 2,081 1,827 (403) 3,505

Net (loss) income (281) 225 — (56)
Identifiable assets 3,709 1,897 (590) 5,016
Total liabilities 2,767 1,357 (590) 3,534

(a) The Company operates wholly owned subsidiaries in Canada, and 42 foreign countries located in the Middle East, Africa, Europe (22),
South America (6) and the Pacific Rim (12).

(b) Represents royalties from foreign subsidiaries generally determined as a percentage of certain amounts invoiced to customers.

For the years ended March 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996, $14 million, $36 million, and $39 million, respectively, of export sales to

unaffiliated customers are included in United States revenue.

Gross and net realized gains on sales of available-for-sale

securities totaled $3 million for the year ended March 31,

1998, and $1 million each for the years ended March 31,

1997 and 1996. No unrealized gains or losses existed at

March 31, 1998 and 1997, and an unrealized gain of $1 

million existed at March 31, 1996.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value based on

published closing prices of debt securities at March 31, 1998,

by contractual maturity are shown in the adjacent table.

Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities

because the issuers of the securities may have the right to 

prepay obligations without prepayment penalties.

March 31, 1998
Estimated

Fair
Cost Value

(Dollars in millions)

Available-for-Sale
Due in one year or less $  9 $  9
Due one through three years 29 29
Due in three through five years 11 11
Due after five years 10 10

$59 $59
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The provision for income taxes (benefit) is reconciled to

the tax provision computed at the federal statutory rate as 

follows:
Year Ended March 31,
1998 1997 1996

(Dollars in millions)

Statutory rate $656 $326 $(35)
State taxes, net of federal tax effect 36 37 (4)
Purchased research and development — 209 —
Other, net 13 (6) (5)

$705 $566 $(44)

Note 9 — Stock Plans
The Company has a 1981 Incentive Stock Option Plan (the

“1981 Plan”) pursuant to which options to purchase up to 27

million shares of Common Stock of the Company were avail-

able for grant to employees (including officers of the Company).

The 1981 Plan expired on October 23, 1991. Therefore, from

and after that date no new options can be granted under the

1981 Plan. Pursuant to the 1981 Plan, the exercise price could

not be less than the Fair Market Value (“FMV”) of each share at

the date of grant. Options granted thereunder may be exercised

in annual increments commencing one year after the date of

grant and become fully exercisable after the expiration of five

years. All options expire ten years from date of grant unless

otherwise terminated. All of the 800,000 options which are

outstanding under the 1981 Plan were exercisable at March

31, 1998 at $2.22–$4.09 per share.

The Company has a 1987 Non-Statutory Stock Option

Plan (the “1987 Plan”) pursuant to which options to purchase

up to 17 million shares of Common Stock of the Company 

may be granted to select officers and key employees of the

Company. Pursuant to the 1987 Plan, the exercise price shall

not be less than the FMV of each share at the date of the

grant. The option period shall not exceed 12 years. Each option

may be exercised only in accordance with a vesting schedule

established by the Stock Option and Compensation Committee.

As of March 31, 1998, 30,375 shares of the Company’s

Common Stock were available for future grants. All of the 

7.9 million options which are outstanding under the 1987 Plan

were exercisable as of that date. These options are exercisable

at $2.22–$4.26 per share.

The Company’s 1991 Stock Incentive Plan (the “1991

Plan”) provides that stock appreciation rights and/or options,

both qualified and non-statutory, to purchase up to 67.5 million

shares of Common Stock of the Company may be granted to

employees (including officers of the Company) under conditions

similar to the 1981 Plan. As of March 31, 1998, no stock

appreciation rights have been granted under this plan and 45.4

million options have been granted. At March 31, 1998, 7.9 mil-

lion of the 33.8 million options which are outstanding under the

1991 Plan were exercisable. These options are exercisable at

$3.33–$47.25 per share.

The 1993 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors

(the “1993 Plan”) provides for non-statutory options to pur-

chase up to a total of 337,500 shares of Common Stock of the

Company to be available for grant to each member of the

Board of Directors who is not otherwise an employee of the

Company. Pursuant to the 1993 Plan, the exercise price shall

be the FMV of the shares covered by the option at the date of

grant. The option period shall not exceed ten years, and each

option may be exercised in whole or in part on the first anniver-

sary date of its grant. As of March 31, 1998, 141,750 options

have been granted under this plan. 74,250 of the 94,500

options which are outstanding under the 1993 Plan were 

exercisable as of that date. These options are exercisable at

$7.59–$43.08 per share.

Note 7 — Commitments and
Contingencies

The Company leases real estate and certain data processing

and other equipment with lease terms expiring through 2021.

The leases are operating leases and generally provide for

renewal options and additional rental based on escalation in

operating expenses and real estate taxes. The Company has no

material capital leases. The Company has begun construction

of a facility in the United Kingdom with an estimated total cost

of $142 million.

Rental expense under operating leases for the years

ended March 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996 was $140 million,

$132 million, and $165 million, respectively. Future minimum

lease payments are: 1999—$89 million; 2000—$71 million;

2001—$56 million; 2002—$42 million; 2003—$35 million;

and thereafter—$101 million.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company

to concentration of credit risk consist primarily of marketable

securities and accounts receivable. The Company’s marketable

securities consist primarily of high quality debt securities with

limited exposure to any single instrument. The Company’s

accounts receivable balances have limited exposure to concen-

tration of credit risk due to the diverse client base and geo-

graphic areas covered by operations.

The Company, various subsidiaries and certain current and

former officers have been named as defendants in various

claims and lawsuits arising in the normal course of business.

The Company believes that the facts do not support the plain-

tiffs’ claims and intends to vigorously contest each of them.

Note 8 — Income Taxes
The amounts of income (loss) before income taxes attributable

to domestic and foreign operations are as follows:

Year Ended March 31,
1998 1997 1996

(Dollars in millions)

Domestic $1,611 $520 $(464)
Foreign 263 412 364 

$1,874 $932 $(100)

The provision for income taxes (benefit) consists of the 

following:
Year Ended March 31,

1998 1997 1996
(Dollars in millions)

Current:
Federal $446 $256 $160
State 44 38 30
Foreign 74 51 56

564 345 246
Deferred:

Federal 119 106 (337)
State 12 19 (36)
Foreign 10 96 83 

141 221 (290)
Total:

Federal 565 362 (177)
State 56 57 (6)
Foreign 84 147 139

$705 $566 $(44)

Under Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement

No. 109, deferred income taxes have been provided for the 

differences between financial statement and tax basis of assets

and liabilities. The cumulative impact of temporary differences,

primarily due to the modified accrual basis (approximately 

$1.2 billion in 1998 and $.9 billion in 1997) is shown on the

Consolidated Balance Sheets under the captions “Deferred

Income Taxes.”
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If the Company had elected to recognize compensation

expense based on the fair value of stock plans as prescribed by

FAS No. 123, net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share

would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts in the

table below:
Year Ending March 31,

1998 1997 1996
(Amounts in millions, except per share amounts)

Net income (loss) — as reported $1,169 $366 $  (56)
Net income (loss) — pro forma 1,085 301 (94)

Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 2.14 $ .67 $ (.10)
Basic earnings (loss) per share —

pro forma 1.99 .55 (.18)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share 2.06 .64 (.10)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share —

pro forma 1.94 .54 (.18)

The weighted-average fair values at date of grant for options

granted in 1998, 1997, and 1996 were $20.44, $19.34, and

$10.52, respectively. The fair value of each option grant is esti-

mated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option

pricing model. The following weighted average assumptions

were used for option grants in 1998, 1997, and 1996, respec-

tively; dividend yields of .22%, .19%, and .34%; expected

volatility factors of .50; risk-free interest rates of 6.2%, 6.5%,

and 6.5% and an expected life of six years. The compensation

expense and pro forma net income (loss) may not be indicative

of amounts to be included in future periods. All references to

the number of shares under option and option prices have

been adjusted to reflect three-for-two stock splits effective

August 21, 1995, June 19, 1996, and November 5, 1997.

Note 10 — Profit Sharing Plan
The Company maintains a profit sharing plan, the Computer

Associates Savings Harvest Plan (“CASH Plan”), for the benefit

of employees of the Company. The CASH Plan is intended to be

a qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue

Code of 1986 (the “Code”) and contains a qualified cash or 

deferred arrangement as described under Section 401(k) of the

Code. Pursuant to the CASH Plan, eligible participants may

elect to contribute a percentage of their annual gross salary.

Matching contributions to the CASH Plan for each of the years

ended March 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996 were $5 million. In

addition, the Company may make discretionary contributions to

the CASH Plan. Discretionary contributions to the CASH Plan for

each of the years ended March 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996

approximated $17 million.

Note 11— Rights Plan
Each outstanding share of the Company’s Common Stock car-

ries a stock purchase right issued under the Company’s Rights

Agreement, dated June 18, 1991 and amended May 17, 1995

(the “Rights Agreement”). Under certain circumstances, each

right may be exercised to purchase one one-thousandth of a

share of Series One Junior Participating Preferred Stock, Class

A, for $300. Under certain circumstances, following (i) the

acquisition of 20% or more of the Company’s outstanding

Common Stock by an Acquiring Person (as defined in the

Rights Agreement), (ii) the commencement of a tender offer or

exchange offer which would result in a person or group owning

20% or more of the Company’s outstanding common stock or

(iii) the determination by the Company’s Board of Directors and

a majority of the Disinterested Directors (as defined in the

Rights Agreement) that a 15% stockholder is an Adverse

Person (as defined in the Rights Agreement), each right (other

than rights held by an Acquiring Person or Adverse Person)

may be exercised to purchase common stock of the Company

or a successor company with a market value of twice the $300

exercise price. The rights, which are redeemable by the

Company at one cent per right, expire in June 2001.

Under the 1995 Key Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the

“1995 Stock Plan”) a total of 20.25 million restricted shares

are available for grant to three key executives. An initial grant

of 6.75 million restricted shares was made to the executives at

the inception of the 1995 Stock Plan. In January 1996, based

on the achievement of a price target for the Company’s com-

mon stock, 1.35 million shares of the initial grant vested, sub-

ject to continued employment of the executives through March

31, 2000. Accordingly, the Company began recognizing com-

pensation expense associated with the 1.35 million shares over

the employment period. Annual compensation expense of $7

million has been charged against income for each of the years

ended March 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996. Additional grants of

the remaining 13.5 million shares available under the 1995 

Stock Plan were made based on the achievement of certain

price targets. These additional grants and the unvested portion

of the initial grant are subject to risk of forfeiture through

March 31, 2000, and further subject to significant limitations

on transfer during the seven years following vesting.

If the closing price of the Company’s stock on the New

York Stock Exchange exceeds $53.33 for 60 trading days with-

in any twelve-month period, all 20.25 million shares under the

1995 Stock Plan will vest immediately, and will no longer be

subject to forfeiture. A one-time charge of approximately $1.2

billion will be recorded in the period in which the sixtieth trad-

ing day occurs. As of May 19, 1998, the closing price of the

Company’s common stock had exceeded $53.33 for 58 trading

days beginning October 21, 1997.

The following table summarizes the activity under these plans (shares in millions):
1998 1997 1996

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Beginning of year 40.2 $13.96 41.2 $  8.71 38.8 $  5.52
Granted 8.9 37.58 9.3 31.51 9.3 19.34
Exercised (5.8) 10.46 (7.9) 6.71 (5.1) 3.98
Terminated (.7) 15.82 (2.4) 16.62 (1.8) 8.21
End of year 42.6 19.36 40.2 13.96 41.2 8.71

Options exercisable at end of year 16.7 $  7.84 15.8 $  7.06 14.7 $  3.83

The following table summarizes information about these plans at March 31, 1998 (shares in millions):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average Weighted Weighted

Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Contractual Exercise Exercise
Prices Shares Life Price Shares Price

$ 2.22 – $10.00 19.8 4.9 years $  6.04 14.2 $  5.04
$10.01 – $20.00 7.3 7.1 years 19.16 1.7 18.89
$20.01 – $30.00 4.9 9.0 years 29.27 .1 25.85
$30.01 – $40.00 6.5 8.1 years 34.97 .7 34.59
$40.01 – $47.25 4.1 9.9 years 47.14 — 40.88

42.6 16.7
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One Computer Associates Plaza
Islandia, NY 11788-7000
(516) DIAL CAI (342-5224)
FAX (516) 342-5329

Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of Computer

Associates International, Inc. will be held at the Wyndham Wind

Watch Hotel located at 1717 Motor Parkway, Islandia, New York,

on Wednesday, August 12, 1998 at 10:00 a.m. E.D.T.

Computer Associates Stock
The Company’s Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock

Exchange under the symbol “CA”. The following table sets

forth, adjusted for three-for-two stock splits effective June 19,

1996 and November 5, 1997, the quarterly high and low clos-

ing prices on the New York Stock Exchange for the quarters

indicated.

High Low
Fiscal 1998:
Fourth Quarter $58.06 $45.44
Third Quarter $56.94 $45.83
Second Quarter $48.88 $36.13
First Quarter $38.92 $25.33

High Low
Fiscal 1997:
Fourth Quarter $32.67 $25.42
Third Quarter $44.83 $32.50
Second Quarter $42.09 $27.00
First Quarter $36.05 $29.39

On March 31, 1998, the closing price for the Company’s

Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange was $57.75.

The Company currently has approximately 10,000 record

stockholders.

On May 19, 1998, the Company declared its regular,

semiannual cash dividend of $.04 per share to stockholders 

of record June 19, 1998 and payable on July 7, 1998. The

Company has paid cash dividends in July and January of each

year since July 1990.

Stockholder Information
A copy of the Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission, is available without

charge upon written request addressed to:

Investor Relations
Computer Associates International, Inc.
One Computer Associates Plaza
Islandia, NY 11788-7000

General Company information and quarterly earnings can be

obtained via the Internet (see below) or by contacting Investor

Relations at (516) 342-5601, by FAX at (516) 342-6864, or 

by e-mail at cainvestor@cai.com. The most recent earnings

release can be electronically transmitted to you by calling 

(516) 342-5377.

CA On The Internet
General financial information, including the Annual Report,

10-K and IO-Q documents as well as news about CA’s prod-

ucts are available via CA’s Home Page on the Internet at

http://www.cai.com.

Dividend Reinvestment Program
CA’s Dividend Reinvestment Program allows stockholders to

reinvest dividends and invest additional cash to purchase CA

Common Stock. You must already be a registered stockholder

to participate. For more information, contact CA’s transfer agent

at the address or telephone number below.

Transfer Agent
Questions concerning dividend reinvestment, stock certificates,

address changes, account consolidation, 1099 tax forms, and

dividend checks or direct deposit should be directed to:

ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, LLC
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, New Jersey 07660
(800) 244-7155 or (212) 613-7427
Hearing Impaired (800) 231-5469
www.chasemellon.com

Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP
787 Seventh Avenue
New York, New York 10019
(212) 773-3000

CA
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NYSE
THE NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE
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Principal 
Offices
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Computer Associates de Argentina S.A.
Av. Alicia Moreau de Justo 400- 2~Piso
1107 Buenos Aires
(54) (1) 317 1500

Australia
Computer Associates Pty. Ltd.
407 Pacific Highway
Artarmon, NSW 2064
(61) (2) 9937 0500
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Computer Associates Intl. Ges. m. b. H.
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(43) (1) 605 80-0

Bahrain
Computer Associates Middle East WLL
Ground Floor, Diplomat Tower 
Building 315
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Manama
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Computer Associates S.A. - N.V.
34, Boulevard de la Woluwe
Woluwedal
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(32) (2) 773 28 11
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Computer Associates do Brasil Ltda.
Av. Engenheiro Luiz Carlos Berrini
1253 6th Floor
04571-010 São Paulo-SP
(011) 5511 5505 4366

Canada
Computer Associates Canada Ltd.
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(1) (905) 676 6700

Chile
Computer Associates de Chile Ltd.
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Oficina 1501 
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Santiago
(56) (2) 203 3151

Colombia
Computer Associates de Colombia S.A.
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Santafe de Bogota - DC
(57) (1) 623 7886

The Czech Republic
Computer Associates Intl. G.m.B.H.
Donska 9
10000 Praha 10
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Denmark
Computer Associates Scandinavia A/S
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Farum DK-3520 
(45) (44) 39 93 00

Finland
Computer Associates Finland OY
Itäelahdenkatu 15-17
Helsinki SF-00210 
(358) (9) 34 84 84

France
Computer Associates S.A.
14 Avenue François Arago
Nanterre Cedex, 92003 
(33) (1) 40 97 50 50

Germany
CA Computer Associates GmbH
Hauptverwaltung
Marienburgstrasse, 35
Darmstadt 64297 
(49) 6151 949 0

Holland
Computer Associates Products 

Nederland B.V.
Wattbaan, 27
Nieuwegein 343 AN 
(31) (30) 604 8345

Hong Kong
Computer Associates International Ltd.
3008-12 Convention Plaza Office Tower
30th Floor
1 Harbour Road 
Wanchai
(852) 2587 1388

Hungary
Computer Associates International G.m.B.H.
Kapas u. 11-15
1027 Budapest
(0036) (1) 457 9140



India
Computer Associates Pte. Ltd.
Liaison Office
511/512 Merchant Chambers
98A Hill Road, Bandra (West)
Mumbai 400 050
(91) (22) 643 4681/2

Indonesia
Computer Associates Indonesia
Wisma 46 Kota BNI
Level 34-05/06
JI Jend Sudirman Kav. 1
Jakarta 10220 Indoniesia
(62) (21) 251 5030

Ireland
Computer Associates Plc
2nd Floor, Europa House
Harcourt Street
Dublin 2 IRE 18
(353) (1) 478 0800

Israel
C.A. Computer Associates Israel Ltd.
Debora Hanevia Street
Neva Sharet, Atidim
Tel Aviv 61580
(972) (3) 6481120

Italy
Computer Associates S.p.A.
Palazzo Leonardo da Vinci
Via Francesco Sforza, 3
Milano 3 City
20080 Basiglio Milan
(39) (2) 90 464 1

Japan
Computer Associates Japan Ltd.
Shinjuku Mitsui Building
2-1-1, Nishi-Shinjuku,
Shinjuku, Tokyo, 163-0439 Japan
(81) (3) 5320 8080

Korea
Computer Associates Korea Ltd.
15th Floor, Textile Center Bldg.
944-31, Daechi-Dong
KangNam-Ku
Seoul, Korea 135-283
(82) (2) 528 3974

Malaysia
Computer Associates (Malaysia) 

Sdn. Bhd.
32.03, Level 32 Menara Lion
165, Jalan Ampang
50450 Kuala Lumpur 
(60) (3) 261 1818

Mexico
Computer Associates de Mexico,

S.A. de C.V.
Av. Insugentes Sur, 1787-Piso 10
Col. Guadalupe-Inn
Mexico D.F. 01020
(52) (5) 327 5210

New Zealand
Computer Associates (NZ) Ltd.
Rural Bank Building, 11th Floor
34-42 Manners Street
Wellington
(64) (4) 801 7654

Norway
Computer Associates Norway AS
Brynsveien, 13
Bryn
Oslo N-0667
(47) (22) 88 40 00

People’s Republic of China
Computer Associates (China) Ltd.
Room 2401, Capital Mansion
No. 6 Xin Yuan Nan Road
Chao Yang District
Beijing 100004
PRC
(86) (10) 6466 1136

Philippines
Philippine Computer Associates

International, Inc.
20/F Antel Corporate Center
#139 Valero Street, Salcedo Village
Makati City Philippines
(63) (2) 751 2060

Poland
Computer Associates Sp. z o.o.
Centrum LIM
Al. Jerozolimskie 65-79
00-697 Warszawa
(0048) (22) 63072 10

Portugal
Computer Associates International, Inc.
Rua Tomas da Fonseca
Torres de Lisboa, Torre G-3
1600 Lisboa 
(351) (1) 727 35 33

Russia
Computer Associates CIS, Ltd.
Representation Office 

Business Complex
Tokmakov, Per., 5
Moscow, USR 107066 
(7) (095) 937 48 50

Singapore
Computer Associates Pte. Ltd.
9 Temasek Boulevard
#10-01/03 Suntec City, Tower 2
Singapore 038989
(65) 337 2822

South Africa
Computer Associates Africa (Pty.) Ltd.
6, Kikuyu Road, Sunninghill Park
Sunninghill Extension 56
Sandton 2157
P.O. Box 3213 Rivonia 2128
(27) (11) 807 5920

Spain
C.A. Computer Associates S.A.
Calle Carabela La Niña, 12
Barcelona 08017
(34) (3) 227 81 00

Sweden
Computer Associates Sweden AB
Berga Backe, 4
Danderyd SWE-18215
(46) (8) 622 22 00

Switzerland
Computer Associates AG
Industriestrasse, 30
Kloten CH-8302
(41) (1) 814 0300

Taiwan
Computer Associates Taiwan Ltd.
6th Floor, 105, Sec. 2.

Tun Hwa South Road
Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C.
(886) (2) 2700 9218

Thailand
Computer Associates (Thailand) 

Company Limited
33rd Floor Abdulrahim
990 Rama IV Road
Silom, Bangkok 10500 Thailand
(66) (2) 636 2467

Turkey
Computer Associates Ltd. Sti.
Büyükdere Cad. Oyal Is 
Hani Kat 5 No. 108-1
80280 Esentepe - Istanbul
(90) (212) 272 7172

United Kingdom
Computer Associates Plc
Computer Associates House
183/187 Bath Road
Slough - Berkshire SL-14AA
(44) (1753) 577 733

United States
Computer Associates International, Inc.
One Computer Associates Plaza
Islandia, NY 11788-7000
(1) (516) DIAL CAI (342-5224)
(1) (800) 225-5224

Venezuela
Computer Associates de Venezuela, C.A.
Av. Principal La Castellana
Centro Letonia
Torre Ing Bank - Piso10 - Ofic. 105
Caracas 1060
(58) (2) 264-4744
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